MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MEETING OF THE CITY OF HAYWARD

City Council Chambers

777 B Street, Hayward, CA 94541

Tuesday, October 9, 2007, 8:00 p.m.

MEETING

The Special Meeting of the City Council/Redevelopment Agency was called to order by Mayor/Chair
Sweeney at 8:00 p.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by Council/RA Member Halliday.

ROLL CALL
Present: COUNCIL/RA MEMBERS Rodriquez, Quirk, Halliday, Ward, Dowling,
Henson
MAYOR/Chair Sweeney

Absent: COUNCIL/RA MEMBER None

PRESENTATION  Business Recognition Award

Belaire Engineering, Inc., was chosen to receive the October 2007 Business Recognition Award.
Dedicated to providing exceptional architectural products, Belaire Engineering is a privately held family
business, located at 22740 Alice Street in Hayward and has been in operation at this location for over
36 years. This award was presented to Belaire Engineering, Inc., for locating and staying in Hayward
for the past 36 years, providing job opportunities to local residents and contributing to the beauty and
economic well being of the Hayward community. Mr. Tom Kessler, President and owner, accepted
the award on behalf of Belaire Engineering, Inc. He indicated that his father started this business and
spoke proudly of the downtown improvement. He thanked the Council for this special recognition and
honor.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Paul Garcia, Hayward’s representative on the Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District,
introduced its General Manager John Rusmisel, who made a presentation on the status of the West
Nile issue in Alameda County. He distributed information and reported recent incidents in San
Leandro and Livermore. He reported the number of infected birds in the area, but stated that
Hayward’s weather has been beneficial in keeping that count low.

Alicia Cerretani, representing the La Rouche Political Action Committee, spoke on the Homeowners
and Bank Protection Act of 2007. She urged the Council to support this legislation.

Scott Gardner, also representing the La Rouche Political Action Committee, stated that there is an
online website for those desiring to support this legislation that assists homeowners.

Linda Bristow, a resident of Call Avenue, spoke on the physical condition of the Hayward Animal

Shelter and commented on the varying temperatures in that building. She requested that there be a
more detailed and updated report on the costs to upgrade the building. She also commented that the

DRAFT



$140,000 estimate may not be sufficient and suggested that other low priority capital improvements be
re-scheduled in order to fund the improvements.

Steve Sapontzis spoke on behalf of the Friends of Animals. He spoke on the proposal submitted to
staff and the subsequent outcome to donate towards the upgrades for the animal care facility. In
exchange for the donation, the Friends asked that the new clinic be made available for spay and neuter
service one day a month. He reiterated his various meetings with staff. He indicated that the staff
presented the Friends with a report of the costs of a spay and neuter clinic, which he felt was
inaccurate. He commented on the subsequent newspaper article regarding the proposed donation by
the Friends. Mr. Sapontzis indicated that a substantial donation will occur, but only after a more serious
and detailed report is presented to the Friends. The Friends continue to support the Hayward Animal
Shelter.

Mayor Sweeney reported that at last week’s meeting the Council directed City Manager Jones and
Police Chief Lowe to sit down with the Friends to consider how best to proceed.

Jeanne Gocker spoke on past experiences with staff related to how staft declined the Friends proposed
spay and neuter clinic. She was disappointed at not being involved in this final decision and spoke
strongly on the need for communication. She indicated that the packet was not immediately available
for their review. She felt that staff was unfair towards their efforts. She enumerated the various
projects funded by the Friends throughout the years that have improved conditions for animals.

Rita Herb, a resident of Hayward for over 40 years, volunteers at the animal shelter. She spoke on the
work accomplished by volunteers relative to feral cats.

Jennie Combs reported that she volunteers weekly at the Hayward Animal Shelter. She commented on
the high temperatures during the summer and urged the City to improve the air conditioning and the
heating conditions at this facility.

Bea Stouffer spoke in support of the Hayward Animal Shelter improvements.

Steve Bristow spoke in support of the Hayward Animal Shelter air conditioning improvements.

Julius Willis submitted a card, but did not speak.

Mary E. Byars, a long time resident and supporter of the Hayward Animal Shelter, spoke in support of
the air conditioning and heating improvements and described her past experience with the shelter.

Donna Klein stated that she fosters cats and spoke in favor of the spay and neuter clinic and the
improvements to the shelter.

Lynne E. Facher is a volunteer at the Hayward Animal Shelter and spoke on the feral cat problem.
Audrey LePell displayed objects that she collected from Depot Road. She also displayed photos that

she took at the Russell City Energy Center (RCEC) site. She reported that on October 23 there will be
a coalition assemblage at the site and invited all to attend.

DRAFT



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MEETING OF THE CITY OF HAYWARD

City Council Chambers

777 B Street, Hayward, CA 94541

Tuesday, October 9, 2007, 8:00 p.m.

Susan Silva spoke against the RCEC.

Andy Wilson spoke on the RCEC mitigation that proposes a fireplace retrofit program to offset
particulate levels. He reported his experience with the California Energy Commission. He also
commented on the proposed antenna and lightings at the shoreline and noted that this was not
discussed at the California Energy Commission session. He also commented on the issue of a
crematorium that 1s being discussed by the Planning Commission and commented on the emissions
from that proposed project.

Mayor Sweeney directed staff to inform interested citizens on the process of the Planning Commission
and the appeal process when the crematorium proposal is on that agenda. He also directed staft to
inform these citizens when the fireplace retrofit program comes before the Council.

Mayor Sweeney spoke on behalf of the entire Council to appreciate all of the work of the leaders and
members of the Friends of Animals. He also reiterated and directed City Manager Jones and Police
Chief Lowe to meet with the leaders of the Friends of Animals, facilitate good communications and
come to an agreement and determine whether the Friends would like to contribute towards
improvements at the animal shelter.

CONSENT CALENDAR
1. Approval of Minutes of the City Council Meeting of October 2, 2007

Council Member Quirk made his recommendations as presented by City Clerk Reyes. Mayor Sweeney
requested that the minutes of the City Council Meeting of October 2, 2007 be continued.

2. Adoption of a Resolution to Approve SEIU Local 1021 Clerical and Confidential Unit and SEIU
Local 1021 Maintenance Unit Memorandums of Understanding

Staff report submitted by Human Resources Director Brock-Cohn,
dated October 9, 2007, was filed.

It was moved by Council Member Henson, seconded by Council Member Ward, and unanimously
carried to adopt the following:

Resolution 07-137, “Resolution Accepting Memorandum of
Understanding between the City of Hayward and Service Employees
International, Local 1021 (Clerical and Confidential Unit and
Maintenance Unit)”

HEARINGS

Prior to the staff presentation, Mayor Sweeney allowed Council Members Quirk and Ward to speak.
Both Council Members indicated that they are members of the Stonebrae Sports Club and stated that

DRAFT

W2



they would not be participating in this discussion nor vote on this item. City Manager Jones also
reported that he now owns property in the Stonebrae development and excused himself from this
discussion and vote. All three then left the Council Chambers and did not participate.

Assistant City Manager David stated that Planning Manager Rizk would be making that presentation.

3. Blue Rock Country Club Project Development Agreement (Stonebrae Country Club) - Request to
Amend the Agreement by Extending its Term for Five Years — The Project is Located Southeast of
Fairview Avenue/Hayward Boulevard in Eastern Hayward on Walpert Ridge

Staff report submitted by Senior Planner Buizer, dated October 9,
2007, was filed.

Planning Manager Rizk made the staft report. He briefly described the recommendation to amend the
agreement to extend the term of the development agreement to complete the project. There were
several issues and lawsuits related to the protected species that caused delays to the construction, thus
the request is to extend the development agreement to 2013. He responded to Council questions and
affirmed that there are no other changes to the agreement.

Mayor Sweeney opened the public hearing at 9:04 p.m.

Steve Miller, Stonebrae’s Executive Director, spoke on the progress of the new development, noting
that in spite of the slow housing market, there are 44 homes occupied and residents are participating in
the club and the 18 golf course is completed.

Mayor Sweeney closed the public hearing at 9:06 p.m.

It was moved by Council Member Henson, seconded by Council Members Rodriquez and Dowling,
and carried by the following roll call vote to adopt:

Resolution 07-138, “Resolution Authorizing Amendment of the Blue
Rock Country Club Project Development Agreement”

Introduce Ordinance 07- , “An Ordinance Authorizing Execution of

Amendment to the Blue Rock Country Club Project Development
Agreement”

DRAFT



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MEETING OF THE CITY OF HAYWARD

City Council Chambers

777 B Street, Hayward, CA 94541

Tuesday, October 9, 2007, 8:00 p.m.

AYES: Council Members Rodriquez, Halliday, Dowling,
Henson
MAYOR Sweeney

NOES: Council Members None

ABSENT: Council Members None
ABSTAINED: Council Members None

DID NOT

PARTICIPATE: Council Members Quirk, Ward

4. A. Proposals by Legacy Partners Related to the South of Route 92 Specific Plan
Amendment Study

»  Mitigated Negative Declaration, Initial Study, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Program and Technical Memorandum

*  @General Plan Amendment Application No. PL-2007-0019 — Request to Amend the
General Plan Land Use Map Designation for Portions South of Route 92 Specific Plan
Area from “Industrial Corridor” to “Retail and Office Commercial” and “Medium
Density Residential;”

»  Specific Plan Amendment — Request to Amend the South of Route 92/Oliver' Weber
Properties Specific Plan Land Use Designation for Portions of the Area from
“Business Park” to “Retaill Commercial” and “Residential,” and Make Related Text
Changes;

*  Development Guideline Revisions — Request to Revise South of 92 Oliver' Weber
Properties Specific Plan Land Use Designation for Portion of the Area from
“Business Park” to “Retaill Commercial” and “Residential,” and Make Related Text
Changes; and

*  Development Guidelines Revisions — Request to Revise the South of Route 92
Oliver’Weber Properties Development Guidelines Associated with Proposed Specific
Plan Amendments;

»  Zone Change Application No. PL-2007-0232 — Request to Amend the Zoning District
for Portions of the South of Route 92 Specific Plan Area from “ Business Park™ and
“Commercial Retail” to “Medium Density Residential,” “Neighborhood Commercial,”
and “Regional Commercial;”

» Zoning Text Amendment Application No. PL-2007-0233 — Request to Delete the
“Commercial Retail” District, Add a New “Regional Commercial” District, and
Amend the “Business Park™ District and “Neighborhood Commercial” District

B. Partial Assignment of the Mt. Eden Business and Sports Park Development Agreement

Staff reports submitted by Planning Manager Rizk and Community and

Economic Development Director Daluddung, dated October 9, 2007,
were filed.

DRAFT



City Manager Jones stated that the item related to the development agreement was noticed, but not
included on this agenda. He noted Council’s options to considering this partially this evening and
considering the amendments to the development agreement in a few weeks.

Director of Community and Economic Development Daluddung provided a historical background on
this property including the community meetings held. She indicated that Planning Manager Rizk would
be presenting the technical and environmental aspects of this project. She reiterated the initial
comments made by City Manager Jones related to the development agreement. She recommended that
the staff’ presentation be heard, the Council discuss the General Plan amendment proposals without
discussion on the partial assignment and consider those proposals. Ms. Daluddung’s final
recommendation would be to view the presentation, listen to public input and continue the entire
project for two weeks.

Planning Manager Rizk presented the proposals and the changes to the original proposal, showing the
law use designations, the zoning designations and the studies that occurred. He described the three
alternatives including the housing, retail and industrial portions for each. He also reported from the
fiscal and traffic reports. He presented the mitigation measures that address potential traffic impacts.
Legacy has reconfigured the land uses that lessen the neighborhood retail office bio-tech and
residential. He briefly enumerated financial fees required in the development agreement. He reported
that the “letter of intent” for the regional retail has been submitted to the City Attorney’s office. He
reported that the Planning Commission outcome was a non-recommendation. There was an additional
motion that includes 30% of the business park acreage be developed prior to the residential being
completed. This was recommended as part of the failed motion of the Planning Commission. Staff is
recommending approval of the project as well as the Eden Shores neighborhood. Eden Shores
neighborhood supports it primarily for the regional retail that would bring enhanced sales tax to the
City.

There was Council discussion related to a clarification on the action to be considered, the legal
implications on what 1s considered and acted on this evening. Acting City Attorney Conneely advised
what actions can be considered and indicated that certain land use entitlements, without the
development agreement revisions may be impacted.

Council Member Halliday asked for assurance related to the big box retail. She also expressed her
concern that homes may be built too near Hesperian Boulevard and the sports park and asked if the
City would be committed to a particular number of houses. Staff stated that Legacy does need a
certain amount of homes to support the retail and that Legacy amendments can include pre-approved
retailers. It was noted that the specific plan still needs to be submitted by Legacy and the number of
homes will be locked in, but the configuration and specific design will still need to be discussed
including any buffers.

Council Member Dowling asked for confirmation that the developer would be contributing to the park
in lieu fund. He also affirmed that there will be a homeowner’s fee for maintenance of the park. He
discussed the proposal that will keep consumers in the City rather than at Union Landing and generate
sales taxes to the City.

DRAFT



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MEETING OF THE CITY OF HAYWARD

City Council Chambers

777 B Street, Hayward, CA 94541

Tuesday, October 9, 2007, 8:00 p.m.

Council Member Henson confirmed the location of the full fitness center. He asked about the business
park. Community and Economic Development Director Daluddung commented on the success at the
Eden Landing Business Park in the re-use of older sites.

Council Member Ward appreciated staff for its efforts in working with the applicant to present this
development. He asked whether the school district has commented on the number of projected
students from this development. He also asked about building retail development prior to the building
of the 167 homes. He asked that staff report on whether this current plan will be impacted by the
absorption rate in light of the housing market downturn. He asked about the location of the proposed
greenway from the existing sports park.

Council Member Rodriquez commented on the many changes she has participated in with this proposal
and asked that staff elaborate on what additional aspects are needed for Council to vote on the
complete project. She was disturbed that the school district did not submit a statement in this regard
and felt that the student generation numbers were not as accurate as calculated.

Mayor Sweeney cited an email that asked the question whether there are plans for an elementary
school in this plan. Director of Community and Economic Development Daluddung responded that
there is no school development at this site.

Planning Manager Rizk reported that the draft mitigated negative declaration provides a student yield
factor resulting in this project generating 17 elementary school students, 5 middle school students and 6
high school students.

Mayor Sweeney asked staff to verify his statement that the difference between Alternative 2 and
Alternative 3 is that Alternative 2 puts more acreage into housing whereas Alternative 3 puts that
acreage into the bio-tech and jobs. He recalled the economic development report that stated that
Hayward was an excellent location for bio-tech and technology. The real issue for Hayward is whether
housing should be permitted in the short term or high technology jobs with absorption in the long term.
He noted that the City’s Economic Development Committee confirmed its priority to protect lands
that are zoned for job generators. The City’s General Plan also states this. Director of Community and
Economic Development Daluddung affirmed his statements.

Mayor Sweeney opened the public hearing at 9:55 p.m.

Steve Dunn of Legacy stated that it’s been a year and a half and appreciated the input. This is a mixed
use project and produces a synergy of quality retail. He stated that the retail will feed new business and
the residential will demand the retail. He highlighted that there are three letters of intent for retail.
Currently, a health club, a regional retailer, and a drug store are planned. He has also been talking with
three grocery store chains. He could not commit to retail, but noted there is potential for well over 600
jobs during construction and another 600 in permanent jobs. The plan has a better traffic scenario and
better retail configuration than previously submitted. Lastly, he noted that the neighboring community
supports it.

DRAFT



Council Member Ward commented on the preferred list and asked Mr. Dunn whether he was willing to
provide such a list. Council Member Ward commented on what types of businesses the City did not
want. Mr. Dunn commented that there needs to be competition, and can work with a list with
flexibility.

Council Member Dowling stated that in the past he has emphasized that he won’t approve empty
boxes, but appreciated efforts by Mr. Dunn in pursuing retailers. He asked about the regional retailer
and was informed that any retailer will need to submit a site plan to the City. He recommended that
this would be quality retail. Mr. Dunn stated that he would agree to a condition of approval.

Council Member Henson suggested that the office bio-tech field be included at this site. Mr. Dunn
stated that Legacy has made efforts in marketing this use.

Council Member Halliday confirmed that the number of homes would be 167 and asked whether there
has been consideration on the buffering of the homes from Hesperian. Mr. Dunn responded that
Legacy is open to buffering as she recommended.

Julius Willis submitted a card but did speak.

Mayor Sweeney closed the public hearing at 10:14 p.m.

Council Member Dowling commented on the development of homes in this area and the past
compromises in obtaining good development in the City. Staff has brought in some specific retails and

this project would be good for the general fund and the traffic impacts will be less. He moved the
motion to approve the first part of this agenda item.

It was moved by Council Member Dowling, seconded by Council Member Henson, moved to adopt
the resolutions and introduce the ordinances with staff to return with commitments and a contract from
the regional retailer and that permits be pulled before the housing.

Council Member Henson stated that the retail is really critical in this area. He stated that the regional
retailer will provide a competitive edge. He appreciated the recreation, housing and retail blend of this
development. He indicated that “nano” technology will benefit at this site.

Council Member Halliday preferred that this be considered in its entirety in two weeks, but thanked the
developers for their time.

Council Member Quirk asked staff to relate the pros and cons of the Council consideration. Acting
City Attorney Conneely stated that the development agreement is extensive and the current plan
represents different land use designations. She was concerned that there wouldn’t be a binding
entitlement.

Council Member Quirk agreed that the vote should wait. He asked about several concerns as
expressed at the Planning Commission with one concern being the global warming impacts that may
place this area below sea level. He also expressed concerns by Hayward Area Shoreline Association
on the problems with levees.

DRAFT



